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Background and Obijective

On October 27, 2009, San Antonio Mayor Julian Castro called a press conference with CPS
Energy’s Interim General Manager, Steve Bartley, to announce that the preliminary cost estimate
for constructing STP Units 3 & 4 had increased to $12 billion, an increase of $4 billion from the
amount publicly announced by CPS Energy in late June 2009. Due to this significantly higher cost
estimate, the Mayor and the Interim General Manager agreed to postpone the planned October 29
vote of City Council to authorize a $400 million bond issuance in support of the nuclear expansion.

On October 30, 2009, the CPS Energy Board of Trustees (the “Board”) requested that the CPS
Energy Chief Audit & Ethics Officer, Helen Madison, immediately begin an investigation as to why
CPS Energy management had not advised the Board that the preliminary cost estimate had
increased to $12 billion. The investigation began the next day, Saturday, October 31, 2009. As
requested by the Board, the objective of the investigation was to answer the following questions:

o Who knew what information, by when, and who did they inform?

o Was there malicious intent to withhold information?

o Was there a failure to exercise prudent judgment and/or a failure to communicate in a
timely manner?

* Did the individuals understand their roles and accountabilities?
in addition to Ms. Madison, the investigation team included CPS Energy Audit Managers Lillian
De Luna and Trena Wiseman. Ms. Madison also engaged Robert Bettac, a local employment

attorney from the San Antonio office of Ogletree, Deakins, Nash, Smoak & Stewart for assistance
and advice in conducting the investigation.

Scope and Investigative Approach

The scope of the investigation included review of several hundred e-mails, meeting notes,
Board resolutions, contracts, presentations, and other documents and communications regarding
STP Units 3 & 4. In addition, the investigation team conducted interviews of numerous individuals,
as listed on page 2. From this information, the investigation team constructed a timeline of events,
which is included as Exhibit A.
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Following are the individuals who were interviewed during the investigation. Most are CPS
Energy employees, uniess otherwise noted in parentheses following the individual’s job title.

Name

Steve Bartley

Larry Blayiock
Julian Castro

Bob Coward

Paula Gold-Williams
Robbie Greenblum
L.D. Hollingsworth
David Jungman
Mike Kotara
Jelynne LeBlanc-Burley
Milton Lee

John Moore

Jim Nesrsta

Kevin Pollo
Kevin Richards

Bob Temple

Job Title

Interim General Manager & CEO

Director, Nuclear Oversight & Development

Mayor (City of San Antonio) and CPS Energy Board member
STP Units 3 & 4 Project Team Lead (STPNOC) '
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Chief of Staff to the Mayor (City Of San Antonio)

Chief Risk Officer

Senior Director, Finance

Executive Vice President, Energy Development

Senior Vice President & Chief Administrative Officer
General Manager & CEO

Executive Vice President, Energy Delivery Services

Vice President, Power Plant Construction and Nuclear
Oversight

Manager, Nuclear Oversight

Senior Vice President & Assistant to the CEO, formerly STP
Units 3 & 4 Project Team Lead (STPNOC)

Deputy General Counsel; Secretary to the Board; and Vice

President, Nuclear Development

Summary of Evidence

Below is a detailed narrative of the significant events outlined in the timeline.

2007 Indicative Estimate

In June 2006 NRG Energy (“NRG"), one of CPS Energy’s partners in STP Units 1 & 2,
announced their intention to construct STP Units 3 & 4. Subsequently, in 2007, NRG began
negotiations with Toshiba Corporation (“Toshiba”) to become the primary contractor for STP Units
3 & 4. On September 26, 2007, Toshiba sent to STP Nuclear Operating Company (“STPNOC"),
which was and is acting as agent for the “Owners” (CPS Energy and NRG), its initial “indicative”
estimate of the cost of the project. The initial indicative estimate was based on the results of a
study prepared for a proposed Tennessee Valley Authority (“TVA”) nuclear plant that was to have
been the same design as proposed for STP Units 3 & 4. The TVA “Beliafonte Study” was
conducted in 2005 and included very detailed costing. Toshiba provided to STPNOC a “modified”
indicative estimate in November 2007 of $8.5 bilion. STPNOC then analyzed Toshiba’'s estimate
and determined that $8.1 billion was a more realistic number for STP Units 3 & 4, taking into
account differences in the two plant sites and other variables. This estimate of $8.1 billion was
provided to the Owners by STPNOC in late November 2007, as a preliminary estimated
construction cost.
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The Board’s Disclosure Directive

On October 29, 2007, the Board approved $206 million in funding for the “development” of STP
Units 3 & 4. Additional funding was approved in 2008 and 2009, making the total approved funding
to date $376 million. The October 29, 2007 Board resolution provided the following:

We direct CPS Energy management to report back to the Board frequently during
the nuclear development process on the results of its continuing public process,
the status of its negotiations of significant contracts, its development of project
cost estimates, its development of project financing alternatives, its projection of
rate impacts associated with construction of new baseload generation, its
identification of risks and challenges for the project and its continuing validation
of assumptions that led to the conclusion that nuclear generation represents the
best choice among the alternatives for new baseload generation.

Applications for DOE Loan Guarantees

On May 2, 2008, NRG, in partnership with Toshiba, formed Nuclear Innovation North America
LLC ("NINA™--NRG owns 88% of NINA; Toshiba owns the other 12%. The current ownership
interest in STP Units 3 & 4 is divided equally at 50% each between CPS Energy and NINA.

On September 26, 2008, both CPS Energy and NINA applied to the U.S. Department of Energy
(DOE) for loan guarantees which were being offered to encourage new nuclear development. A
comparison of the applications reveals that NINA's estimate was $7.85 billion, and CPS Energy’s
estimate $7.91 billion. NINA's application presented four ownership percentages of STP Units 3 &
4, inciuding 100% ownership by itself. CPS Energy’s application indicated only equal ownership
for each partner. _

Toshiba’s Withholds 2008 Estimate

On October 28, 2008, John Bates of NINA sent an e-mail (Exhibit B) to Jim Nesrsta stating
that:

Toshiba’s senior management is under the expectation that an estimate must be
delivered the week of November 3™ to the Owners.... [T]here needs to be a
significant amount of effort [by Toshiba] with respect to developing an accurate
[2008] estimate that takes the following into account:

= The significant reductions in commodity pricing and overall global
slowdown we are currently experiencing. Material and equipment
pricing is probably at or below our overnight estimate of November
2007, offset somewhat by the strength of the Yen....

= Full benefit of modularization of the project....

» A full and detailed review of the specifications on changes that could be
made to reduce capital cost.

After having the opportunity to review the estimate we will then schedule a series
of review sessions....

{ believe the approach is absolutely critical for CPS and NINA to get an estimate
that we can base future decision[s] on and submitting an estimate.

will not reflect the current market conditions nor our desire for a comp\e\e
specification review. Quality is far more important than schedule on this effort.....
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Toshiba had been preparing a Preliminary Estimate intended for release in September 2008;
however, the Owners requested that Toshiba take into account the recent steep declines in the
woridwide economy before providing a 2008 Preliminary Estimate. Toshiba responded that such
re-work wouid be too resource consuming and they decided to instead defer.a re-calculation until
2009. Subsequently, on July 15, 2009, Toshiba disclosed their draft 2008 Preliminary Estimate of
$12.67 billion to STPNOC in a PowerPoint presentation. (See section below titted CPS Energy’s
2009 Estimate.)

EPC Agreement

On February 24, 2009, STPNOC as Agent for the “Owners” (CPS Energy and NINA,
specifically NINA Texas 3 LLC and NINA Texas 4 LLC) and Toshiba as Contractor entered into the
“South Texas Project Units 3 & 4 Master Engineering, Procurement & Construction (EPC)
Agreement.” The EPC Agreement represented a major milestone in the development of STP Units
3 & 4. A project of this magnitude carries substantial inherent financial risk for all contracting
parties. The Owners, on the one hand, would prefer that the contractor guarantee a firm fixed
price. The contractor (Toshiba), on the other hand, cannot be expected to guarantee a fixed price,
due to the constant fluctuation of all cost variables such as materials, equipment and labor, as well
as the 7 to 8 year length of the project--unless it includes Higher than usual contingency and other
fees which wouid unreasonably inflate the total cost. The EPC Agreement seeks to control the risk
to which both the Owners and Toshiba will be exposed. To achieve this, the parties agreed to
negotiate the pricing methodology they will use for determining all substantial costs associated with
the project.

Under the EPC Agreement, the negotiation of the pricing methodology with Toshiba is to be
completed by December 31, 2009. Establishing a negotiated pricing methodology, per the EPC
Agreement, in 2009Using this agreed methodology, moreover, Toshiba is also required to notify
the Owners of its Preliminary Estimate of the cost of the project by December 31, 2008.
Thereafter, under the EPC Agreement Toshiba is required to update the Preliminary Estimate
annually until licensing of the reactors is obtained from the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, which
is expected to occur in 2012. The EPC Agreement further provides that, shortly after licensing,
Toshiba will furnish the Owners a fixed price for the project. The price will be “fixed” to the extent
that the Owners will be protected against major fluctuations in the cost of materials, equipment,
labor, etc. These provisions of the EPC Agreement figure prominently in the discussion that
follows.

Also of note, exploration of the pricing methodology led to the creation of the Cost Optimization
Team in March 2008, to review technical specifications. And, in October 2009, a separate
Innovation and Cost Reduction Team (ICRT), which includes some 24 cost reduction sub-teams,
was created to review each line item of any cost proposal presented by Toshiba or Fiuor.

CPS Energy’s 2009 Estimate

Because of Toshiba's decision not to submit their draft 2008 Preliminary Estimate to the
Owners, in the May-June 2009 timeframe CPS Energy took two measures to create an updated
cost estimate of its own. First, it created an updated estimate of construction costs by escalating
(adjusting for market changes) the indicative estimate provided in 2007 by STPNOC (based on
Toshiba's estimate). Next, CPS Energy compared its updated estimate to a modeling estimate
created by consulting firm Sargent & Lundy; the primary purpose of both estimates was for
comparison of nuclear to alternative types of electric generation sources (coal, gas, renewables).
CPS Energy’s internal estimate was virtually the same as Sargent & Lundy’s modeling estimate-a
cost of $10 billion excluding financing costs. This estimate was substantially higher than the cost
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estimate announced by NRG/NINA on June 5, 2009, which was $10 billion including financing
costs.

Mixed Signals from Toshiba

Less than two weeks later, however, specifically on June 16, 2009, Kei Nishida of Toshiba sent
an e-mail to Bob Temple and David Jungman (see Exhibit C) advising that Toshiba could not
endorse CPS Energy's $10 billion figure; and that Toshiba’'s Preliminary Estimate may be higher.
The next day, June 17, 2009, Kevin Richards of STPNOC informed Nesrsta and Bates (NINA) by
e-mail that Toshiba would not sign a contract with construction firm Fluor because Fluor's estimate
of the construction costs (its piece of the project) was too high. Fluor's actual number,
accompanied by six volumes of supporting documentation, was made available in Greenville,
South Carolina, for “Open Book” review by the Owners, beginning June 22. Toshiba again stated
its opinion that Fluor's estimate was too high. Itis our understanding that Toshiba has not signed a
contract with Fluor as of this writing.

That same day (June 22) Kotara gave a progress report to the CPS Board. He specified an
estimated cost of $10 billion plus $3 billion in financing costs, for a total of $13 billion, of which $5.2
billion would be CPS Energy’s share of the cost. The Board approved release of the cost estimate
to the public for the June 29 start of the “Public Process.”

The evening of Sunday, June 28, 2009, the day before the start of the Public Process, Kevin
Richards of STPNOC sent an e-mail to Jim Nesrsta and John Bates in reference to an e-mail from
Kei Nishida of Toshiba, stating:

This message from Nashida [sic] is troubling [that Toshiba is not in a position to
endorse the $10B figure]. Here is what | know. TSB [Toshiba] is pressuring
Fluor to reduce their part of the estimate, Fluor's number alone got to 7.5B. ltis
now at 6.5B. TSB has told them they need to get to 5B. | doubt they will get to 5
but think we may get them to under 6B by challenging the estimate by line item.
Currently, | am not sure where TSB estimate is--but should being [sic] into that
piece [sic] over the next week or so.

If | read into this, | would say the TSB portion is at 4B. If you take all of that--it
says the estimate stands around 11.5-12 B (with some reductions coming)—
overnight [cost]-and of course that does not include the risk and the fix price
negotiation.

At this stage of the project, | have always condoned using a range.
John Bates of NINA replied:

| heard from TSB [Toshiba] that they have set a 6.5 stretch for Fiuor, but Fluor
has not committed. TSB’s scope is as much, which makes little sense to me. |
think we need to take a hard look at their STG [Steam Turbine Generator] and
other equipment costs. . . . We have a 2B+ gap, which is not surprising at this
point. | am comfortable we can achieve the numbers that CPS is stating
regarding EPC costs.

Nesrsta forwarded this e-mail string (Exhibit D) that same evening to Kotara, Temple, Blaylock
and Pollo with the notation: “FYl. We probably need to huddle in the morning.” Kotara promptly
responded:
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I'm very disappointed that we have come this far, and only now are learning of
how wide the gap is between our estimate and Toshiba's. It is hard to
understand how we can spend in excess of $200 million, and still have -
$1-2 billion gap between us and our contractor. And if we had not pushed for a
public announcement, then we wouldn't be having this discussion until 6 months
later. Our project costs and rate projections are clearly understated.

That same evening Nesrsta replied: “We knew that Fluor was coming in with high numbers.
That is one of the reasons that Toshiba has not signed with Fluor. We didn’t know how high until
now. We still don’t know what a ‘real’ number might be and we won'’t have that until the end of the
year. This is part of the negotiation.” Bob Temple added: *“I agree we have some time and
negotiating before we are dealing with a ‘real’ price.” Kotara replied: “That's all well and good, but
we should not have used an ‘optimistic’ number for our Long Range Resource Plan analysis. |
think we need to ask Finance to rerun everything with something like $12B overnight [cost].” (See
Exhibit E.) Staff subsequently ran the model again, with $12 billion for the overnight cost, and
determined that the nuclear expansion project was still economically viable up to the higher cost, at
which point gas was equally viable.

Despite the foregoing e-mail exchange, Kotara did not share the number from Richards’ e-mail
with Steve Bartley. CPS Energy's $10B (w/out financing) /$13B (w/ financing) estimate was
announced publicly on June 29, 2009, at a Board meeting held at the Villita Assembly Building.

On June 30, 2009, the STP Units 3 & 4 Owners Committee met in Bay City, Texas. The
minutes of that meeting, prepared by STPNOC, reflect the following

The Owners stated that the estimate numbers that Toshiba gave them last week
were unacceptable and must be reduced in order for the project to continue.... It
was noted that this year's open book estimate review is top priority. The Owners
need to receive the realistic project estimate no iater than December 2009. They
will make a decision on whether to continue the project after they receive this
estimate.

On July 1, 2009, Toaru Maruyama of Toshiba sent an e-mail to Kevin Richards of STPNOC
stating that Toshiba has repeatedly said that its draft cost estimate for 2008 was too high. As of
July 1, however, Toshiba still had not revealed the amount of that estimate. The estimate was
finally disclosed at a meeting on July 15, 2009, to which STPNOC, but not CPS Energy or NINA,
was invited. Kevin Richards of STPNOC states that STPNOC had not anticipated learning of any
numbers from Toshiba at this meeting. Larry Blaylock of CPS Energy was advised on the
afternoon of July 15 by Joe Kiwak, NINA’s on-site representative, that Toshiba was meeting with
STPNOC personnel. Blaylock immediately made arrangements to attend the second day of the
meeting, on July 16, 2009. While there, Blaylock received a copy of a Toshiba PowerPoint
presentation on the 2008 cost estimate, which had been presented the prior day. (See Exhibit F,
excerpted from that presentation.)

Pages 5 and 11 of the PowerPoint presentation described “TANE/Toshiba’s position of 2008
estimate” as follows: “2008 preliminary estimate is outdated and not effective today. All efforts are
now focused on 2009 Preliminary Estimate to realize cost reductions.” The very next entry on the
slide stated that the “[t]otal difference with 2007 Indicative estimate [was] $4,144M,” meaning $4.1
billion. The reader could quickly deduce that Toshiba’s 2008 estimate was therefore $8.5 billion
plus $4.1 billion = $12.6 billion. Blaylock was unable to obtain additional information about the
PowerPoint presentation, such as why Toshiba would. present the 2008 estimate when it was
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described on the slide as “outdated and not effective today.” CPS Energy staff understood from
STPNOC (and the Investigation Team verified with STPNOC) that July 15, 2009 was the first time
STPNOC heard from Toshiba that their 2008 estimate had been $12.6 billion; the number had not
been provided in 2008 nor early 2009.

Also on July 15, an Owners’ conference call was held between Richards, Steve Winn (CEO of
NINA), and Kotara. During the call, Richards announced that Fluor's detailed estimate (a
component of Toshiba’s estimate) had started at $7.5 billion three weeks earlier, that the number
had already been reduced to $6.4 billion, and that he expected Fluor's final number to be below
$6 billion.

The following week, on July 23, 2009, at a project meeting in Greenville, S.C. with all parties
represented including Toshiba, Nesrsta announced that if Toshiba's Preliminary Estimate does not
come in below $9 billion, CPS Energy staff would recommend that the Board not move forward
with the project.

NRG/NINA Meetings with Mayor Castro

On July 31, 2009, Bartley drove to Austin for a luncheon meeting with Steve Winn of NINA.
The purpose of the meeting was to discuss CPS Energy’'s and NINA’s options vis-a-vis one
another with respect to STP ownership. Bartley inquired whether NRG would consider transferring
a larger ownership interest in STP Units 1 & 2 in exchange for CPS Energy’s transfer to NRG of all
of CPS Energy’s rights in STP Units 3 & 4. Winn responded he did not think NRG would be
interested, but clarified that he could only speak for NINA and not NRG. Bartiey asked Winn to
convey his proposal to NRG, and Winn said he would. Winn then proposed a Purchase Power
Agreement as an alternative, but Bartiey promptly declined. Implicit in this proposal was the notion
that CPS Energy would sell its entire interest in STP 3 & 4 to NRG/NINA.

Following the meeting, Winn commented that he needed to travel to San Antonio in order to
meet with Mayor Castro. (Bartley has informed the investigation team that he was aware of
NRG/NINA having met with the Mayor at least once prior to this conversation.) Bartiey offered to
give Winn a ride to San Antonio. Winn graciously declined, adding that Mark Walker, a public
relations representative for NRG, would be picking him up by prior arrangement.

Bartley states that some days later Robbie Greenblum, Chief of Staff to the Mayor, told him that
he had asked Winn if he had followed up with NRG to see if they were interested in the swap
proposal. Greenbium told Bartley that Winn said that he had not followed up with NRG.

On August 10, 2009, Temple sent an e-mail to Board Chair Aurora Geis stating that Winn was
scheduled to meet with the Mayor “again” at 3:00 p.m. that day.

On August 11, 2009, John Bates of NINA transmitted to Kotara by e-mail the portion of
Toshiba's July 15, 2009 PowerPoint presentation indicating the amount of the 2008 cost estimate
for the project which Toshiba had declined to reveal in 2008. This appears to have been Kotara's
first opportunity to view the text of Toshiba's PowerPoint presentation.

David Crane, CEO of NRG, and Winn met with Mayor Castro on August 31, 2009. NRG and
NINA had also arranged a separate meeting with prominent San Antonio business leaders that
morning to discuss the STP expansion project. Bartiey was not initially invited to either meeting,
but after inquiring, he was invited to the community leaders meeting (only).
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That same day (August 31) the Board heard a presentation by Kotara on the nuclear
development budget. After this meeting, Bartley took over the presenting of such information to
the Board, at the request of the Board.

Council Briefing, Toshiba Conference Call

On October 7, 2009, the CPS Energy management team, including Lee, Bartley, Kotara, and
Temple, appeared before City Council to discuss the status of STP Units 3 & 4. According to the
San Antonio Express-News, Council was advised that CPS Energy may not be able to pay for the
STP expansion if the electric rate increases were limited to 5% every other year. That same
evening, a conference call was scheduled for the Owners and Toshiba in Japan. Crane of NRG
organized the call. Kotara and Nesrsta were present for the entire 20-minute conversation. Per
Nesrsta and Kotara, Bartley joined the call mid-way, and Lee and Temple joined toward the end,
having been delayed by the City Council meeting. During the call Bartley declared it was
imperative that Toshiba close the “gap” between its cost estimate and CPS Energy’s expectation
as to cost, or else CPS Energy could not continue the project.

Immediately after the call, the group went to dinner at Paesano’'s. Those attending inciuded
Lee, Bartley, Kotara, Nesrsta, and Temple. Paula Gold-Wiliiams, CFO, also joined them. During
the meal, Nesrsta discussed the “gap” with Bartley. There are varying recollections of the
particulars: Bartiey does not recall Nesrsta mentioning a specific number and is not sure that he
and Nesrsta even discussed STP 3 & 4. Nesrsta believes that he did speak of $12 billion, or a $4
billion gap, but he is not certain that he gave a specific number. Kotara and Temple believe that
Nesrsta specifically mentioned the $12 billion estimate.

Toshiba’s Unofficial 2009 Estimate

The Board met on October 13, 2009, and approved the sale of half (25%) of CPS Energy’s
stake in the STP expansion, and also approved the sale of $400 million in bonds to fund STP
development. The meeting started at 2:17 p.m. At 7:45 a.m. that morning, however, Bob Coward
with STPNOC wrote an e-mail to Nesrsta and Bates stating:

The news is not good. The combined Toshiba-Fiuor cost estimate “delivered”
today will be $12.04 B.... They know this far exceeds the Owners’ estimates, but
this is where they are.... My current plan is a discussion this afternoon with
[Toshiba/Fluor personnel] to lay out a roadmap of how we can close the gap....
My inclination is that we should not broadcast this information, but you need to
know status.

Nesrsta forwarded Coward’s e-mail immediately to Kotara, Blaylock, Pollo, Eliis, and Temple.
(See Exhibit G.)

At 4:18 p.m. that same day (October 13), Steve Ellis, a consultant for CPS Energy in
Greenville, S.C., transmitted Toshiba’s new preliminary estimate as an attachment to an e-mail to
Ed Alarcon, Nesrsta, Pollo, and Blaylock. The amount of the estimate was shown as $12.354
billion. The next morning, October 14, 2009, Nesrsta saw the e-mail for the first time and
forwarded it, with attachments, to Kotara and Temple. (See Exhibit H.) The following day,
October 15, 2009, Kotara had a breakfast meeting with Bartley during which they discussed the
$12 billion number. Kotara aiso sent Bartley the October 15 weekly cost estimate update from the
ICRT, reflecting Toshiba’s “current” estimate of $12.3 billion by e-mail later that day.
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On October 19, 2009, Mayor Castro, referring to the STP expansion, asked Steve Bartley,
“Where are the numbers going?” Bartley answered in pertinent part that “we could end up with
$1 billion more.”

The next day, October 20, 2009, Paula Gold-Williams sent an e-mail to Mike Kotara requesting
that he give her a projected date by which he could furnish an update on CPS Energy’s $10 billion
estimate, so that she could sign off on the finance due diligence with the rating agencies. Kotara
responded that, “Preliminary discussions are ongoing now, but we do not expect to have a firm
updated cost estimate until January 2010.”

On October 22, 2009, John Bates from NINA wrote the following in an e-mail (Exhibit I) to Jim
Nesrsta:

Is the CPS Board aware of the current status of the estimate? Or will there be
some update prior to the city council vote? We will be presenting the estimate as
delivered by TSB/Fiuor along with status of Cost Innovation team at the NRG
Analyst Conference in November. | have asked TSB and Fluor to present the
EPC Costs with me to provide additional credibility. My assumption is it'll be
10B+ for EPC and since there will be 200 analysts there it'll be reported in the
press.

Jim Nesrsta replied:

John, as far as | know, we had no intention of giving the Board a new estimate
for the project until we were done working on this, i.e., in January. | think your
discussion of incomplete cost estimates in public in November is a major problem
as we said before.

John Bates’ reply to Jim:

We are at 12.6 now. The preliminary will be done the week of Nov 9" and don't
think estimate will be adjusted until after cost innovation team decisions are
made, which is after Jan. We plan to show those potential. . . [sic]. They have
been at it a number of months and think it is close to complete.

A curious feature about Bates’ comments is that he went from “10B+” to “12.8” in less than an
hour and a half. As a follow-on to that exchange, Temple replied to Nesrsta and Kotara as follows:
“Steve [Bartley] is supposed to call David Crane about this to make it clear it will be unacceptable
to not coordinate going public on a price and NINA’s or NRG'’s unilateral desire to do this is not
acceptable. He will be asking for a coordinated strategy on release of price information.”

October 26 Board Meeting

On October 26, 2009, in executive/closed session of the regular monthly Board meeting, Steve
Bartley gave a status report on STP 3 & 4, telling the Board that: “Toshiba has given us a high
number to negotiate over. We are in discussions and [have] already obtained concessions.”
During a break in the meeting, Robbie Greenblum asked Bartley about Toshiba's estimate, but
Greenblum’s and Bartley’s recollections of the conversation differ. Bartley recalls Greenblum
asking him, “Is there something to this $12 billion?” and Bartley answered yes, but tried to provide
Greenblum some context for the number in the limited time remaining before his presentation to
the Board began. Greenblum recalis that he told Bartley he had heard that Toshiba came in with a
much higher number, and that Bartley answered "Yes.” Greenblum says he then asked “How
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much?” and Bartley answered $12 billion. Greenblum aiso recalls that Bartley added words to the
effect of, “That's their offer, and we’ll have to work them back down.”

October 27 Press Conference

The evening of October 26 Bartley was contacted by the Mayor's Chief of Staff, Robbie
Greenblum, who requested that he attend a meeting in the Mayor's office the next morning.
Bartley states that he also received a missed call from Counciiman Phil Cortez that same evening.

At 10 a.m. on October 27, Bartiey met with the Mayor and his Chief of Staff. Bartley attended
the meeting by himself, apparently without alerting any member of his staff. Per Bartley, the Mayor
and Greenblum inform him that Council members have received news of a $12 billion cost
estimate. The Mayor expressed concern about the timing of this news, especially in light of the
planned City Council vote on October 29, regarding a $400 million bond issue for long-term
financing of current STP 3 & 4 development costs. Bartley also recalis telling the Mayor that the
number “needs to be put in context,” to which the Mayor replied that it was too late for context and
that the City Council needed to be informed immediately. They proceeded to discuss how to brief
the Council and whether or not to move forward with the vote after briefing the Council. Bartley
recalls telling the Mayor that he wouid need to check with his CFO, Paula Gold-Williams, to
evaluate the impact of a delay in the vote until January on CPS Energy’s financial situation, before
briefing the Council, although he believed they could. They also discussed possibly holding a
press conference that afternoon. They leave voicemail messages for the Board Chair, Aurora
Geis, and the Chair-elect, Derrick Howard, to tell them of their discussion.

Bartiey was again called to the Mayor’s office around 1:00 p.m. Prior to receiving the call from
Greenblum, he notices he has a missed call from Anton Caputo of the San Antonio Express-News.
Per Bartley, Mr. Caputo’s voicemail message refers to a new cost estimate to be released that day
by either CPS Energy or City Hall. He also hears from Mike Kotara about the same time that Mike
has also received a call from Caputo and that Mike has told him that he had no knowledge of a
pending announcement.

The press conference was held at 3:30 p.m. Bartley informed Lee of the $12 billion estimate
for the first time when Bartley was on his way to the press conference. At the press conference,
Bartley stated that he had only recently received the new estimate and that he thought the Toshiba
number was no more than a negotiating position. The Mayor announced that he and Bartley had
agreed to postpone the Council's vote until January 2010. A day or so after press conference
David Crane of NRG challenges Bartley about his statement to the press; that Crane had known
about the number since July 2009.

Subsequent Events

On October 28, 2009, Kotara sent to Bartley Toshiba’s October 13, 2009, letter announcing the
$12 billion estimate. At Kotara's suggestion, Bartley forwarded the e-mail and letter to all members
of the Board.

On October 30, 2009, Jelynne LeBlanc-Burley had a phone conference with Mayor Castro.
During the conversation he made her aware of an e-mail which suggested CPS Energy staff knew
about a higher estimate and intentionally withheld it prior to the Council vote. He said that Jim (he
did know his last name), a member of CPS Energy staff, said in an e-mail to someone at NRG that
staff did not intend to share the estimate with the Board prior to the City Council vote.

On Monday, November 2, 2009, LeBlanc-Burley went to the Mayor's office on Steve Bartley's
behalf to present his proposed action plan to respond to recent events and media attention. At that
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meeting she was able to tell the Mayor that she had seen the e-mail in question, as well as an
October 29, 2009, as a result of the investigation underway. Robbie Greenblum and City Attorney
Michael Bernard were aiso present.

We asked Mayor Castro when and how he first became aware of any questionable e-mails, in
particular an October 22 e-mail string between John Bates and Jim Nesrsta. He stated that
although he did not have a copy, he was shown the e-mail, and that Frank Burney, an attorney for
NRG, had shown it to him.

On November 18 and 19, 2009, NRG conducted an investor conference. During one of the
presentations, Bates provided the following information: “The updated EPC cost estimate is $9.2
to $10.0 billion,” thus $1.1 to $2.0 billion more than CPS Energy’s June 29 estimate. Bates noted
that “our biggest variability [is attributabie to] exchange rates.” According to Bates (slide 12 in his
presentation): “We are roughly halfway through the development of the estimate, and significant
work needs to be completed to ensure competitive pricing.” Finally, on slide 14 he states: “The
owners, Fluor and Toshiba are confident that a number below $10 billion is achievable.” (See
Exhibit K.)

Roles and Accountabilities

Following is a recap of defined roles and accountabilities for those members of CPS Energy
management having responsibility for oversight of the development of STP Units 3 & 4.

Jim Nesrsta

Mr. Nesrsta holds the position of Vice President, Power Plant Construction and Nuclear
Oversight. He directly reports and is accountable to the Executive Vice President for Energy
Development, Mike Kotara. Written performance goals for Mr. Nesrsta, as established in 2008 for
the three-year period ending June 2010 and relating to STP 3 & 4, include the following:

Timely and thorough communication with the Executive Vice President for
Energy Development on all urgent and emerging issues arising during the course
of any nuclear development meetings and/or discussions.

Bob Temple

Mr. Temple holds the position of Vice President, Nuclear Development. Written performance
goals for Mr. Temple, as established in 2008 for the three-year period ending June 2010, include
the following: ‘

Timely and thorough communication with the Executive Vice President for
Energy Development [Mike Kotara] and the Vice President—Power Plant
Construction and Nuclear Oversight [Jim Nesrsta] on all urgent and emerging
issues arising during the course of any nuclear development meetings and/or
discussions.

Mike Kotara

Mr. Kotara directly reports and is accountable to the Interim General Manager, Steve Bartley.
His written Accountabilities relative to STP Units 3 & 4 include the following:
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Direct Accountabilities — “Owns” the process or function — Is fully accountable for
the output

A. Plan, prioritize, and implement long-range generation planning decisions for
construction of new generation sources and decommissioning of power
plants

Steve Bartley

Mr. Bartley directly reports and is accountable to the Board of Trustees. His written
Accountabilities relative to STP Units 3 & 4 include the following:

Direct Accountabilities — “Owns” the process or function — Is fully accountable for
the output

A) Ensure that CPS Energy is leveraging the full potential of its resources and
has the necessary systems in place to:

o Optimize available resources and determine resource allocation in the
best interests of our owners, customers, and the viability of CPS Energy

o Direct and integrate all mainstream business operations ...
E) Ensure the acquisiton and optimal allocation of resources to achieve
strategic intent
Miiton Lee

Mr. Lee directly reports and is accountable to the Board of Trustees. His “Final Employment
Agreement,” effective for the one-year period beginning October 1, 2009, includes the following
Accountabilities and Authorities relative to STP 3 & 4 and Mr. Lee's interaction with the Interim
General Manager (Mr. Bartley):

GM/CEQ Succession

Accountability

Coach and mentor to provide for the grooming and development of the IGM
[Interim General Manager] who is being considered as an internal succession
candidate for the GM/CEO [General Manager & CEO] position to replace the
current CEO [who is] to retire in September 2010.

Authority
Dedicate time monthly to interact with IGM....

CEO Support to Strategic Initiatives

Accountability

Due to the complex nature of the ongoing development of STP possible
expansion of units 3 and 4, the CEO is accountable for remaining actively
engaged in critical aspects of the development of CPS’ strategy in the project.
This accountability requires the CEO to continue to give his best advice and
counsel to the Board, the IGM and to the Strategy Development Team (SDT).

Authority

CEO has the authority to offer his best advice to the Board, the IGM, and to the
SDT, whether advice is solicited or unselicited. - This-authority-does.not.give. the
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CEO to [sic] authority to determine the decision on behalf of the IGM. If the CEO
is not satisfied that the IGM has appropriately considered his advice and counsel,
then the CEO shall notify the Board Chairman along with a recommended course
of action. :

Investigation Findings

Overview

It appears that Bartley, Kotara, Nesrsta, and Temple, as well as Kevin Richards and STPNOC,
believed that premature release of Toshiba's estimate to the public was unwise. This was so for
- several reasons: First, Toshiba's official Preliminary Estimate still has not been provided. The

reason is the Preliminary Estimate cannot be calculated until the parties have first negotiated the
methodology for determining costs. Under the EPC Agreement, this negotiation is to be completed
and, based thereon, the official Preliminary Estimate is to be provided by December 31, 2009.
Toshiba's June 16 notice that it could not endorse CPS Energy’s $10 billion/$13 billion estimate
(that CPS Energy intended to announce on June 29) did not result in any change in CPS Energy’s
estimate, which was then communicated to the public throughout the summer months. Similarly,
Toshiba’s July 15 PowerPoint presentation, which revealed in written form for the first time the draft
2008 estimate of $12.67 billion, carried littte or no weight with CPS Energy staff because the
PowerPoint presentation itself declared the estimate “outdated and not effective today.” And just
two weeks earlier Toshiba's CEO stated that Toshiba had repeatedly said that its 2008 estimate
was too high.

Further, the Flour component of the estimate included six volumes of supporting data; by
comparison Toshiba's unofficial estimate was accompanied by very limited support that did not
provide sufficient detail for meaningful cost reduction efforts by the Owners. The Toshiba
component did not comport with the EPC Agreement, which requires an “Open Book Process” in
setting the pricing methodology and resulting cost estimate.

It appears that Toshiba's unofficial preliminary estimate of October 13 was first read by CPS
Energy management the day after the Board’s October 13 vote to approve the bond issue. This
aside, the factors recited in the preceding paragraphs support the conclusion--one that is shared
by the CPS Energy project team--that Toshiba’s unofficial preliminary estimate was a posturing/
bargaining position.

Management firmly believed (and continues to believe) that Toshiba's estimate is high and very
likely can be substantially reduced once the cost reduction teams are able to complete the open
book review as outlined in the EPC Agreement.

This is not to say, however, that any member of the project team proposed to conceal key
developments from the Board, even if they concerned an estimate the team deemed to be
unreliable. We have discovered no evidence of such a plan, and any lack of information flowing to
the Board appears to have been due, at worst, to a difference of opinion on what information
should be deemed material and thus deserving of the Board's attention. Nesrsta and Temple have
each stated during our investigation that Kotara at no time ever instructed them to conceal or
withhold any information from the Board.

Jim Nesrsta
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Without question, Mr. Nesrsta was promptly informed of all relevant events concerning the STP
expansion. Although he had made monthly presentations to the Board concerning the project in
the past, he was relieved of this duty by Mr. Kotara in January 2008. Similarly, although he was an
initial member of the Strategic Development Team (SDT), due to a re-organization in March 2009,
he was no longer a member of the SDT. His duty to report material information was therefore
owed primarily, if not exclusively, to his supervisor Mike Kotara. Mr. Nesrsta's opportunities to
inform Mr. Bartley of pertinent developments were quite limited; they seldom had occasion to
discuss the project. We find that Mr. Nesrsta consistently fulfilled his duty to keep Mr. Kotara
informed of the status of the project.

Mr. Nesrsta's e-mail of October 22, 2009, does not alter our findings. Although he stated he
did not believe that the CPS Energy team had intended to advise the Board of Toshiba’'s number,
the decision was not his to make; he was merely conveying his understanding. Although he also
counseled against NRG/NINA “going public’ with Toshiba's estimate, it was because he
considered the estimate to be “incomplete.” His assertion is consistent with the rationale of the
team, as discussed above.

Bob Temple

Little has been said in the summary of evidence concerning Mr. Temple’s role as a member of
the STP project team. This is true largely because he was not usually the first recipient of the
information that is the subject of this investigation. Of course, he has served as CPS Energy’'s
principal legal advisor and representative concerning STP Units 3 & 4, and has been a key
contributor to the progress made to date. His duty to report material information, however, was
limited to the individuals identified in the agreement he has with management, i.e., Mr. Kotara and
Mr. Nesrsta. We find little evidence that Mr. Temple was privy to information that was not already
in the possession of these individuals, and certainly no evidence of a failure to disclose material
information first falling into his possession.

Mr. Temple’s e-mail of October 22, 2009, to Mr. Nesrsta does not reveal any attempt on his
part to conceal information from the Board. His comment was merely that it would be
“unacceptable to not coordinate [with NRG/NINA] going public on a price.” It is important to note
that nowhere in this e-mail does Mr. Temple advocate withhoiding information from the Board. We
find no evidence that Mr. Temple breached his disclosure responsibilities.

Mike Kotara

Mr. Kotara is accountable for keeping his supervisor Steve Bartley informed of all significant
matters relating to the STP expansion. Although he made regular monthly presentations to the
Board on the subject until August 31, 2009, this responsibility was thereafter performed by
Mr. Bartley. While one may argue that Mr. Kotara should have recognized an obligation to inform
the Board prior to August 31, 2009 of Kevin Richards’ suspicion on June 28 that Toshiba's cost
estimate would approach $12 billion, the fact remains that CPS Energy did not receive Toshiba’s
unofficial estimate until mid-October, after Mr. Kotara had ceased his monthly Board presentations.

We find that Mr. Kotara informed Mr. Bartley of Toshiba’s October 13 unofficial estimate with
reasonable promptness. It appears that he received the correspondence by e-mail on October 14
and advised Mr. Bartley of its content the next morning, October 15.

We also find, however, that Mr. Kotara failed his responsibility of prompt disclosure to Mr.
Bartley when he received Kevin Richards’ e-mail prediction on June 28 that Toshiba’s estimate
would be $11.5 to $12 billion. This information was received on the eve of launching CPS
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Energy’s informational campaign for the public~a campaign that notably advertised a much lower
cost. Mr. Kotara seems to have understood the potential impact of Mr. Richards’ assessment, for
he expressed frustration over “only now . . . learning of how big the gap is between our estimate
and Toshiba's.” He also suggested that “our project costs and rate projections are clearly
understated.” It is therefore surprising that Mr. Kotara failed to inform Mr. Bartiey of this
development until mid-October 2009, more than three months later.

We express no opinion on whether CPS Energy should have delayed its informational
campaign or altered its $10/$13 billion estimate in light of Mr. Richards’ prediction. Our finding is
limited to what could reasonably have been expected of Mr. Kotara in the circumstances. One
may also wonder why Mr. Bartley, on being informed by Mr. Kotara of a significant gap between
the estimates of Toshiba and CPS Energy, did not ask for further explanation. Whatever the
reason, Mr. Kotara should have recognized an obligation to report a potential 50% increase in the
cost estimate.

We further find that Mr. Kotara's failure to report this information to Mr. Bartley in a timely
manner was not the product of any malicious intent. For the reasons discussed above (see
Overview, pages 11 and 12), Mr. Kotara had good reason to question whether Toshiba’s apparent
position was credible. We do, however, believe that Mr. Kotara's doubts about the legitimacy of
Toshiba’s methods did not justify his not informing Mr. Bartley.

Steve Bartley

Implicit in his role as Interim General Manager, Mr. Bartley is responsible for keeping the Board
apprised of significant developments during the course of the STP expansion project. In our view,
Mr. Bartley knew or should have known of the impending gap between Toshiba's and CPS
Energy’s cost estimates by October 7,7 2009. Although it is uncertain whether Nesrsta informed Mr.
Bartiey of the $12 billion figure while at dinner on October 7, there was a phone conference
immediately beforehand, during which Mr. Bartley emphasized the need to “close the gap,” which
Kotara and other CPS Energy participants had requested he do. Per Mr. Bartiey, he was not
informed of the size of the gap prior to the phone conference. In our opinion, it is unreasonable to
think that a General Manager/CEO would have referenced a risk of withdrawal from the project
because of cost, without first gaining an understanding of the severity of the probiem.

This aside, Mr. Bartley agrees that he knew of Toshiba's $12 billion estimate by October 15.
He also knew, as did many others, that the City Council was scheduled to vote October 29 on the
issuance of $400 million in bonds for continuation of CPS Energy's participation in the
development of STP Units 3 & 4. Given Mr. Bartiey's years of management experience and his
level in the organization, we believe he should have recognized that news of a 50% increase in
Toshiba's cost estimate couid have a devastating effect on Council's vote. He should therefore
have recognized that it was incumbent on him to inform the Board (at ieast in executive session) of
this development, so that the Board could assess what further measures, if any, were called for
prior to the vote.

Mr. Bartley's explanation for his silence during this period is that he, like the other members of
CPS Energy management, doubted the legitimacy of Toshiba’'s number. While this might possibly
be justification for a decision not to go public with the Toshiba estimate, it does not excuse Mr.
Bartiey’s failure to inform the decision makers on such matters, i.e., the Board. As subsequent
events have so plainly illustrated, this failure to communicate has exposed both management and
the Board to accusations of dishonesty.
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Milton Lee

Mr. Lee is not directly accountable for CPS Energy’s participation in the STP Units 3 & 4,
however, he is accountable for “remaining actively engaged in critical aspects of the development
of CPS' strategy in the project.” His Final Employment Agreement also indicates that he does not
have the authority to make decisions for or on behalf of Mr. Bartley. Although Mr. Lee had
knowledge and awareness of the STP expansion project, he has stated that he first learned of the
$12 billion estimate the day of the press conference.

We found no evidence that Mr. Lee did not communicate information that he was aware of
relative to the scope of this investigation.

Mayor Julian Castro

We address the role played by the Mayor Castro in these events, not because he is the Mayor,
but because he is one of five voting members of the Board, all of whom owe a fiduciary duty to
CPS Energy. It appears that he met with representatives of CPS Energy’s partner NRG/NINA in
private from two to four times, beginning in the summer of 2009. CPS Energy management was
not invited to any of them, and Mayor Castro did not report the results of any of these meetings to
the Board. He has described these meetings as “meet and greet” sessions. However, he has also
stated that NRG/NINA was very open about their willingness to acquire a larger interest in STP
Units 3 & 4.

We also note that Mr. Greenblum indicated on October 26 that he had heard rumors about
Toshiba’s estimate. Despite interviews of Mr. Greenblum, it remains unclear how or when he
acquired this information. Finally, the Mayor had prior knowledge of at least one suspect e-mail
exchange between Mr. Nesrsta and Mr. Bates of NINA and that he was shown the e-mail by
NRG/NINA.



